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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
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v. FILED by%b&
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A,, MAR 12 2010
STEVEN M. LARIMORE
Defendant. CLERKU. 8. DIST. CT.
S. D. of FLA. — MIAMI
/
INFORMATION

The United States Attorney charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times material to this Information

1. Defendant WACHOVIA BANK, N.A. was a national banking association based in
Charlotte, North Carolina.

2. Defendant WACHOVIA BANK, N.A. was subject to oversight and regulation by
the Department of the Treasury, Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC?).

3. The Bank Secrecy Act (“BSA™), 31 U.S.C. § 5311 et seq., and its implementing
regulations, which Congress enacted to address an increase in criminal money laundering activities
utilizing financial institutions, requires domestic banks, insured banks and other financial institutions
to maintain programs designed to detect and report suspicious activity that might be indicative of
money laundering and other financial crimes, and to maintain certain records and file reports related

thereto that are especially useful in criminal, tax or regulatory investigations or proceedings.



Case 1:10-cr-20165-JAL Document 3 Entered on FLSD Docket 03/17/2010 Page 2 of 5

4. Pursuant to Title 31, United States Code, Section 5318(h)(1) and 12 C.F.R. §21.21,
Defendant WACHOVIA BANK, N.A., was required to establish and maintain an anti-money
laundering (“AML”) compliance program that, at a minimum:

(a) provided internal policies, procedures, and controls designed to guard against

. money laundering;

(b)  provided for an individual or individuals to coordinate and monitor day-to-day

compliance with the BSA and AML requirements;

(©) provided for an ongoing employee training program; and

(d) provided for independent testing for compliance conducted by bank personnel or

an outside party.
COUNT 1
Failure to Maintain Anti-Money Laundering Program
(31 U.S.C. §§ 5318, 5322)

From in or about May 2003, and continuing until in or about June 2008, the exact dates being
unknown to the United States Attorney, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida,
and elsewhere, the defendant,

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.,
did willfully fail to establish an anti-money laundering program, including, at a minimum, (a) the
development of internal policies, procedures, and controls designed to guard against money
laundering; (b) the designation of a compliance officer to coordinate and monitor day-to-day

compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act and anti-money laundering requirements; (c) the

establishment of an ongoing employee training program; and (d) the implementation of independent
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testing for compliance conducted by bank personnel or an outside party.

In violation of Title 31, United/States Code, Sections 5318(h)(1) and 5322(a).

JYFFREY H. SLOMAN
ITED STATES ATTO EY

ARDREA G. HOFFMAN ~ ~J V
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

ng e m
JA DE. DW
ISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

RICHARD WEBER
CHIEF, ASSET FORFEITURE AND MONEY LAUNDERING SECTION
U.S. DEPARTV\Z'B/S\!T OF JUSTICE, CRIMINAL DIVISION

A ol
STANTIN ZAS

& WA ol
TTHEW S. HASLINGER
AL ATTORNEY
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CASE NO.

vVS.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY*
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.,

Defendant.
/ Superseding Case Information:
Court Division: (Select One) New Defendant(s) Yes No
Number of New Defendants

X Miami — Key West Total number of counts
—— FTL — WPB __ FTP

| do hereby certify that:

1. | have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number of

probable witnésses and the legal complexities of the Indictment/Information attached hereto.

2. | am aware that the information supplied on this statement will be relied upon b¥]the Judges of this
Court in setting their calendars and scheduling criminal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial Act,
Title 28 U.S.C. Section 3161.

3. Interpreter: (Yes or No? Na
List language and/or dialec

4, This case will take 0 days for the parties to try.
5. Please check appropriate category and type of offense listed below:
{Check only one) (Check only one)
| 0 to 5days X Petty -
Il 6 to 10 days Minor -
i 11 to 20 days Misdem. -
v 21 to 60 days - Felony —X
Y 61 days and over
?f. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) No
es:
Juydge: : Case No.
“-\ttach copy of dispositive order)
Ifas a complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) No_
es:
Mggistrate Case No.
Related Miscellaneous numbers: 1:08-CR-20097-NI G
Defendant?s; in federal custody as of
Defendant(s) in state custody as of '
Rule 20 from the District of
Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) _No
7. Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior
to October 14, 20037 Yes X __ No
8. Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior

to September 1, 20077

Yes —X__ No
/

ANDREA G. HOFFMAN J
A5500885

JARED E. DWYER

A5501240

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

*Penalty Sheet(s) attached REV 4/8/08
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant’s Name: WACHOVIA BANK, N.A

Case No:

Count #:1

Failure to maintain anti-money laundering program

Title 31, United States Code, Section 5318(h) and 5322(a)

*Max. Penalty: Five years imprisonment

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,
special assessments, parole terms, or forfeitures that may be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTRISBMEPRT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CaseT‘ ' - 210—1@ CR’ LENARD

AT RAYE Jurria

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA TURNOFE
Vs, FILED by D.C.
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A,, R 16 19
Defendant. %{i}’f”” 'f:;; B 1%5
/ 8. D of FLs \M\E“ug"
WAIVER OF INDICTMENT

Defendant Wachovia Bank, N.A. by and through its attorneys, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP,
pursuant to authority granted by its Board of Directors, being advised of the nature of the charge, the
proposed Information, and of its rights, hereby in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 3 of
the Deferred Prosecution Agreement with the United States dated March [ &, 2010, waives a
prosecution by indictment and consents to the filing of a One Count Information charging a violation

of Title 31, United States Code, Sections 5318(h) and 5322(a).
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.
By:

SULLIV & CROMWELL LLP
By: iéV‘/ 7

DOU@GLAS EDWARDS
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT OF WACHOVIA

BANK, N.A.
seazad

o
W
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 10-20165-CR-LENARD Yy,
FILED by

D.C.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA e a
MAR 15 2019
V8. STEVEN M. LARIMORE

CLERK U S DIST.CT.
S D.of FLA. - MIAMI

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

Defendant.
/

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT

Defendant Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovia”), a federally chartered banking institution
and a subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company (“Wells Fargo”), by and through its attorneys, Sullivan
& Cromwell LLP, and King & Spalding LLP, pursuant to authority granted by its Board of Directors,
and the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of Florida and the Asset Forfeiture
and Money Laundering Section of the Criminal Division of the Department of Justice, (collectively,
“the United States™), enter into this Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the “Agreement”).

Parties Bound By the Agreement

1. This Agreement and all provisions set forth herein bind Wachovia and any of its
branches, representative offices, successors, and assigns. If Wachovia's business operations are sold
to a party or parties unaffiliated with Wachovia as of the date hereof, whether by sale of stock,
merger, consolidation, sale of a significant portion of its assets, or other form of business
combination, or otherwise undergo a direct or indirect change of control within the term of this
Agreement, such party or parties shall be bound by this Agreement and all provisions set forth

herein. The parties understand that Wachovia is scheduled to merge with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Ry
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(“Wells Fargo Bank™) in March 2010. The parties understand and agree that Wells Fargo Bank is
bound by the terms and provisions of this agreement. Wherever the term “Wachovia™ appears in this
Agreement, it refers not only to Wachovia but also to all of its branches, representative offices,
successors, and assigns. It is further understood that this Agreement and all provisions set forth
herein are binding on the United States, but specifically do not bind any other federal agencies, or
any state or local authorities, although the United States will bring the cooperation of Wachovia and
its compliance with its other obligations under this Agreement to the attention of federal, state, or
local prosecuting offices or regulatory agencies if requested by Wachovia or its attorneys.

2. The entirety of the conduct set forth herein occurred at Wachovia before it was
acquired by Wells Fargo.

The Charges

3. Wachovia shall waive indictment and agree to the filing of a one (1) count
information in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida charging it with
failing to maintain an effective anti-money laundering program, in violation of Title 31, United
States Code, Sections 5318(h)(1) and 5322(a).

Acceptance of Responsibility

4. Wachovia accepts and acknowledges responsibility for its conduct and that of its
employees as set forth in the Factual Statement attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein
as Exhibit A (“Factual Statement”). If the United States, pursuant to Paragraph 12 of this
Agreement, initiates a prosecution that is deferred by this Agreement against Wachovia, Wachovia
agrees that it will neither contest the admissibility of the Factual Statement or any other documents

provided by Wachovia to the United States, nor contradict in any such proceeding the facts contained
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within the Factual Statement.

Forfeiture and Fine

5. The United States has determined that it could institute a criminal or civil forfeiture
proceeding against certain funds that passed through certain accounts at Wachovia. Wachovia
hereby acknowledges that more than $110,000,000 was involved in transactions in accounts in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956 and 1957, and, therefore, at least some or
all of the funds deposited in such accounts are subject to forfeiture to the United States pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 981 and 982. Wachovia hereby agrees to settle and does settle
any and all civil and criminal forfeiture claims presently held by the United States against those
funds for the sum of $110,000,000 (the “Forfeiture Amount™). Wachovia agrees that the funds paid
to the United States by Wachovia pursuant to this Agreement shall be forfeited to the United States
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981, and Wachovia releases any and all claims it may have to such funds.
As of December 23, 2009, Wells Fargo repaid any and all funds that it received through the Troubled
Asset Relief Program (“TARP”). Accordingly, the funds used in the payment of the $110,000,000
will not include any funds provided to Wells Fargo through TARP. Wachovia shall pay the
Forfeiture Amount within five business days from the entry of this Agreement puréuant to payment
instructions as directed by the United States in its sole discretion.

6. The parties agree that in addition to the above forfeiture, Wachovia shall pay a fine
of $50,000,000. Such fine shall be satisfied by a payment being made to the Department of the
Treasury, pursuant to the order issued by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”)in
the amount of $50,000,000. As of December 23, 2009, Wells Fargo repaid any and all funds that

it received through TARP. Accordingly, the funds used in the payment of the $50,000,000 will not
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include any funds provided to Wells Fargo through TARP. Wachovia shall pay the fine amount
within five business days from the entry of this Agreement pursuant to payment instructions as
directed by the OCC in its sole discretion.

7. The United States has considered a number of factors in determining the appropriate
fine in this matter. The parties agree that a $50,000,000 fine is appropriate in this case because: @)
of Wachovia's considerable remedial actions specified within the Factual Statement; (ii) the legal
entity that will pay the fine is Wells Fargo Bank, while the failures occurred at Wachovia; and (iii)
there is no evidence or allegation that Wells Fargo Bank's anti-money laundering program is
deficient.

Deferral of Prosecution

8. In consideration of Wachovia's remedial actions to date and its willingness to: (a)
acknowledge responsibility for its conduct as detailed in the Factual Statement; (b) continue its
cooperation with the United States; (c) demonstrate its future good conduct and compliance in all
material aspects with the Bank Secrecy Act and all of its implementing regulations, including, but
not limited to, the remedial actions specified in Paragraph 10 below; and (d) settle any and all civil
and criminal claims currently held by the United States, its agencies, and representatives against the
funds referred to above for the sum of $110,000,000, the United States agrees as follows:

1. The United States shall recommend to the Court, pursuant to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 3161(h)(2), that prosecution of Wachovia on the Information filed pursuant to
Paragraph 3 be deferred for a period of twelve (12) months. Wachovia shall consent to a motion,
the contents to be agreed by the parties, to be filed by the United States with the Court promptly

upon execution of this Agreement, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3161(h)(2), in which the United States
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will present this Agreement to the Court and move for a continuance of all further criminal
proceedings, including trial, for a period of twelve (12) months, for speedy trial exclusion of all time
covered by such a continuance, and for approval by the Court of this deferred prosecution.
Wachovia further agrees to waive and does hereby expressly waive any and all rightstoa speedy trial
pursuant to the Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution, Title 18, United States Code,
Section 3161, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 48(b), and any applicable Local Rules of the
United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida for the period that this Agreement
is in effect; and
ii. The United States agrees that if Wachovia is in compliance in all material
aspects with all of its obligations under this Agreement, the United States, within thirty (30) days
of the expiration of the time period set forth in Paragraph 8 above, shall seek dismissal with
prejudice of the Information filed against Wachovia pursuant to Paragraph 3 and this Agreement
shall expire and be of no further force or effect.
Court Is Not Bound

9. Wachovia and the United States understand that the Agreement to defer prosecution
of Wachovia must be approved by the Court, in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 3161(h)(2). Should
the Court decline to approve a deferred prosecution for any reason, both the United States and
Wachovia are released from any obligation imposed upon them by this Agreement and this
Agreement shall be null and void.

Cooperation
10.  Wachovia agrees to implement certain remedial measures designed to fully comply

with the Bank Secrecy Act, and abide by any orders and regulations of the OCC, and the Department
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of the Treasury, Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”), including those set forth in
the OCC’s Consent Order, No. AA-EC-10-17.

11.  Wachovia agrees that in accordance with applicable laws, it shall provide to the
United States, on request, any relevant document, electronic data, or other object concerning matters
relating to this investigation in Wachovia's possession, custody, and/or control. Whenever such data
is in electronic format, Wachovia shall provide access to such data and assistance in operating
computer and other equipment as necessary to retrieve the data. This obligation shall not include
production of materials covered by the attorney-client privilege or the work product doctrine or any
other applicable privilege. Wachovia shall in all material aspects completely, fully, and timely
comply with all the record-keeping and reporting requirements imposed upon it by the Bank Secrecy
Act, Title 31, United States Code, Sections 5311 through 5332 and the Bank Secrecy Act
implementing regulations, as well as the remedial actions set forth in the OCC’s Consent Order, No.
AA-EC-10-17.

Government Commitments

12.  Inreturn for the full and truthful cooperation of and compliance by Wachovia and its
successors with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the United States agrees that it shall not
seek to prosecute Wachovia or any of its branches or representative offices, or successors, or assigns
for any act arising from the facts contained in, connected to, or involving the conduct described in
the Factual Statement, or disclosed by Wachovia or othefwise uncovered in the course of these
investigations, unless, in the sole discretion of the United States, there is a willful and material
breach of this Agreement. In the event of a breach resulting in the prosecution of Wachovia or a

prosecution related to Wachovia’s failure to maintain an effective anti-money laundering program,
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the United States may use any information provided by or on behalf of Wachovia to the United
States or any investigative agency, whether prior to or subsequent to this Agreement, and/or any
leads derived from such information, including the attached Factual Statement.
Waiver of Rights

13.  Wachoviahereby further expressly agrees that any violations of the Bank Secrecy Act
pursuant to 31 U.S.C. §§ 5318(h) and 5322(a) that were not time-barred by the applicable statute of
limitations as of the date of this Agreement may, in the sole reasonable discretion of the United
States, be charged against Wachovia within six (6) months of any breach of this Agreement
notwithstanding the expiration of any applicable statute of limitations. Wachovia also expressly
waives any challenge to the venue or jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Florida.

Breach of the Agreement

14.  Ifthe United States determines that Wachovia has committed a willful and material
breach of any provision of this Agreement, the United States shall provide written notice to
Wachovia’s counsel of the alleged breach and provide Wachovia with a four-week period, or longer
at the reasonable discretion of the United States, in which to make a presentation to the United States
to demonstrate that no breach has occurred or, to the extent applicable, that the breach is not willful
or material, or has been cured. The parties hereto expressly understand and agree that should
Wachovia fail to make a presentation to the United States within such time period, it shall be
presumed that Wachovia is in willful and material breach of this Agreement. The parties further
understand and agree that the United States' exercise of reasonable discretion under this paragraph

is not subject to review in any court or tribunal. In the event of a breach of this Agreement that
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results in a prosecution, such prosecution may be premised upon any information provided by or on
behalf of Wachoviato the United States or any investigative agencies, whether prior to or subsequent
to this Agreement, and/or any leads derived from such information, including the attached Factual
Statement, unless otherwise agreed to by the United States and Wachovia in writing at the time the
information was provided to the United States.
Requirement to Obey the Law

15.  Ifthe United States determines during the term of this Agreement that Wachovia has
committed any federal crime commenced after signing this Agreement, Wachovia shall, in the sole
discretion of the United States, thereafter be subject to prosecution for any federal crimes of which
the United States has knowledge, including but not limited to the conduct described in the Factual
Statement. The discovery by the United States of any purely historical criminal conduct that did not
take place during the term of this Agreement will not constitute a breach of this provision.

Public Statements

16.  Wachovia expressly agrees that it shall not, through its attorneys, Board of Directors,
agents, officers, or employees, make any public statement contradicting any statement of fact
contained in the Factual Statement. Any such contradictory public statement by Wachovia, its
successor in interest, its attorneys, Board of Directors, agents, officers, or employees shall constitute
a breach of this Agreement, and Wachovia would thereafter be subject to prosecution pursuant to
the terms of this Agreement. The decision of whether any statement by any such person
contradicting a fact contained in the Factual Statement will be imputed to Wachovia for the purpose
of determining whether Wachovia has breached this Agreement shall be in the sole discretion of the

United States. Upon the United States' notification to Wachovia of a public statement by any such
p
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person that in whole or in part contradicts a statement of fact contained in the Factual Statement,
Wachovia may avoid breach of this Agreement by publicly repudiating such statement within two
business days after notification by the United States. This paragraph is not intended to apply to any
statement made by any individual in the course of any criminal, regulatory, or civil case initiated by
a governmental or private party against such individual. In addition, consistent with Wachovia's
obligation not to contradict any fact contained in the Factual Statement, Wachovia may take good
faith positions in litigation involving any person or entity not a party to this Agreement. Nothing
stated in this Agreement is intended to operate or shall operate as a waiver of Wachovia's rights
under Federal Rule of Evidence 408.

Additional Terms

17.  Wachovia and the United States agree that, upon acceptance by the Court, this
Agreement and an Order deferring prosecution shall be publicly filed in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Florida.

18.  This Agreement sets forth all the terms of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement
between Wachovia and the United States. No promises, agreements, or conditions shall be entered
into and/or are binding upon Wachovia or the United States unless expressly set forth in writing,
signed by the United States, Wachovia's attorneys, and a duly authorized representative of Wachovia.
This Agreement supersedes any prior promises, agreements, or conditions between Wachovia and

the United States.
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Acknowledgment of Wachovia Bank, N.A.

I, Douglas Edwards, the duly authorized representative of Wachovia Bank, N.A., hereby
expressly acknowledge the following: (1) that I have read this entire Agreement; (2) that | have had
an opportunity to discuss this Agreement fully and freely with Wachovia’s attorneys; (3) that
Wachovia fully and completely understands each and every one of its terms; (4) that Wachovia is
fully satisfied with the advice and representation provided to it by its attorneys; and (5) that

Wachovia has signed this Agreement voluntarily.

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

Mok 1, 200 \\@an{@ N~

DATE Douglas Edwards
SeniorWice President of Wachovia Bank, N.A.

10
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Acknowledgment of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

I, Douglas Edwards, the duly authorized representative of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., hereby
expressly acknowledge the following: (1) that I have read this entire Agreement; (2) that I have had
an opportunity to discuss this Agreement fully and freely with Wells Fargo Bank’s attorneys; (3) that
Wells Fargo Bank fully and completely understands each and every one of its terms; (4) that Wells
Fargo Bank is fully satisfied with the advice and representation provided to it by its attorneys; and

(5) that Wells Fargo Bank has signed this Agreement voluntarily.

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

Nt e, 200 NS s

DATE Dou s Edwards
Senior Vice President of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

11
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Counsel for Wachovia Bank, N.A and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

The undersigned are outside counsel for Wachovia and Wells Fargo Bank. In connection
with such representation, we acknowledge that: (1) we have discussed this Agreement with our
clients; (2) we have fully explained each one of its terms to our clients; (3) we have fully answered
each and every question put to us by our clients regarding the Agreement; and (4) we believe our

clients completely understand all of the Agreement's terms.

N & CROMWELL LLP

Marc 16,2010

DATE By:  Samuel W/ Seymo \
Nicolas (Bourtin

KING & SPALDING LLP
Marew 16, 2010 MM\’; >
DATE By:  Christopher A. Wray

J. Sedwick Sollers III

12
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Aufler o) 210

DATE

Hinkerd )6, 2010
DATE

By:

On Behalf of the Government

St o Preto~—

JEFFREY SLOMAN
United States Attorney
Southern District of Florida

/A

AXDREA G. HOFFMAN (7

Assistant United sz/Ajomey
; é A

JARED E. DWY
1stant United/States Attorney

By:

RICHARD WEBER, Chief
Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Section
U.S. Department of Justice, Criminal Division

dpokor o WP o

CONSTANTINE LIZAS <
Trial Attorney

74*1_.0/{’\-&. A/J(%’/\ /J'L

MATTHEW S. HASLINGER ™
Trial Attorney

13
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Exhibit A

Factual Statement

1. WACHOVIA BANK, N.A. (“Wachovia”) is a federally chartered banking institution and
subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company (“Wells Fargo”). Wells Fargo is a publicly-traded
financial services company. The Department of the Treasury, Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency (“OCC”) is Wachovia’s primary regulator.

2. Congress enacted the Bank Secrecy Act, Title 31, United States Code, Sections 5311 et seq.
(“BSA”), and its implementing regulations to address an increase in criminal money
laundering activities utilizing financial institutions. Among other provisions, it requires
domestic banks, insured banks, and other financial institutions to maintain programs
designed to detect and report suspicious activity that might be indicative of money
laundering, terrorist financing, and other financial crimes, and to maintain certain records and
file reports related thereto that are especially useful in criminal, tax, or regulatory
investigations or proceedings.

3. Pursuant to Title 31, United States Code, Section 5318(h)(1) and 12 C.F.R. § 21.21,
Wachovia was required to establish and maintain an anti-money laundering (“AML”)
compliance program that, at a minimum: (a) provides internal policies, procedures, and
controls designed to guard against money laundering; (b) provides for an individual or
individuals to coordinate and monitor day-to-day compliance with the BSA and AML
requirements; (c) provides for an ongoing employee training program; and (d) provides for
independent testing for compliance conducted by bank personnel or an outside party.

4. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 5318(i)(1), Wachovia was also required to implement risk-based
programs to verify and record the identity of customers opening accounts so that the bank
could form a reasonable belief that it knows the true identities of its customers. Each bank's
Customer Identification Program (“CIP”) must take into account the risks present in various
types of accounts, the various kinds of account opening procedures, the various types of
identifying information available, and the bank's size, location, and customer base.

5. In particular, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 5318(i)(1), banks that manage private banking or
correspondent accounts in the United States for non-U.S. persons must establish due
diligence, and in some cases enhanced due diligence, policies, procedures, and controls that
are designed to detect and report suspicious activity related to certain specified accounts. For
foreign correspondent accounts, the Department of Treasury’s Financial Crimes Enforcement
Network’s (“FinCEN”) implementing regulations require that the due diligence required
under 31 U.S.C.§ 5318(i)(1) include an assessment of the money laundering risk presented
by the account based on all the relevant factors including, as appropriate: (i) the nature of the
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foreign financial institution's business and the market it serves; (ii) the type, purpose, and
anticipated activity of the account; (iii) the nature and duration of the bank's relationship with
the account holder; (iv) the anti-money laundering and supervisory regime of the jurisdiction
issuing the license for the account holder; and (v) information reasonably available about the
account holder's anti-money laundering record.

6. Wachovia was also required, pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 5318(g), 31 C.F.R. § 103.18, and 12
C.F.R. § 21.11, to file with the Department of the Treasury a Suspicious Activity Report
(“SAR”), in accordance with the form's instructions, when it detected the type of activity
described below. The requirement became effective on April 1, 1996. According to the
form's instructions, Wachovia was required to file a SAR with FinCEN for any transaction
conducted or attempted by, at, or through the bank, if it involved or aggregated at least
$5,000 in funds or other assets, and the bank knew, suspected, or had reason to suspect that:

(i) The transaction involved funds derived from illegal activities or was intended or
conducted in order to hide or disguise funds or assets derived from illegal activities
(including, without limitation, the ownership, nature, source, location, or control of
such funds or assets) as part of a plan to violate or evade any federal law or
regulation or to avoid any transaction reporting requirement under federal law or
regulation.

(ii) The transaction was designed to evade any requirements promulgated under the
Bank Secrecy Act.

(iii) The transaction had no business or apparent lawful purpose or was not the sort
in which the particular customer would normally be expected to engage, and the bank
knew of no reasonable explanation for the transaction after examining the available
facts, including the background and possible purpose of the transaction.

The Southern District of Florida Investigation

The Early Investigation

7. Beginning in June 2005, the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of
Florida, the Drug Enforcement Administration (“DEA”), and the Internal Revenue Service-
Criminal Investigation Division (“IRS”) began investigating certain wire transfers that were
sent to the United States from Mexico. The wired funds were being used for the purchase
of aircraft in the United States. Those aircraft were then being used to move illegal narcotics
from narcotics-producing countries for ultimate distribution in the United States.

8. The wire transfers were traced back to correspondent bank accounts held by certain Mexican
currency exchange houses (commonly referred to as “casas de cambio” or “CDCs”) at
Wachovia in the United States. The CDC correspondent bank accounts were supervised and
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managed by a business unit of Wachovia that was located in Wachovia’s offices in Miami,
Florida.

9. On numerous occasions, monies were deposited into a CDC by a drug trafficking
organization. Using false identities, the CDC then wired that money through its Wachovia
correspondent bank accounts for the purchase of airplanes for drug trafficking organizations.
On various dates between 2004 and 2007, at least four of those airplanes were seized by
foreign law enforcement agencies cooperating with the United States and were found to
contain large quantities of cocaine.

10.  Intotal, nearly $13 million dollars went through correspondent bank accounts at Wachovia
for the purchase of aircraft to be used in the illegal narcotics trade. From these aircraft, more
than twenty thousand kilograms of cocaine were seized.

Wachovia’s CDC Business Was High Risk

11.  The account holders at Wachovia that conducted these transactions were Mexican CDCs.
A CDC is not a bank. CDCs are licensed non-bank currency exchange businesses that are
located in a number of countries, including Mexico. CDCs allow persons in Mexico to
exchange one type of currency for other currency, e.g., exchange a value of pesos for an
equal value of U.S. dollars or a value of U.S. dollars for an equal value of pesos. Through
CDCs, persons in Mexico can use hard currency, such as pesos or U.S. dollars, and wire
transfer the value of that currency to U. S. bank accounts to purchase items in the United
States or other countries.

12.  CDCs do not operate in the same manner as banks operate in the United States. CDCs do
not hold deposits or maintain checking accounts, savings accounts, or issue lines of credit.
Nor do CDCs provide personal and/or commercial banking services. A central function of
CDCs is to allow persons or businesses in Mexico to exchange or wire transfer the value of
hard currency from Mexico to bank accounts in the United States or other countries to
conduct commerce.

13.  The nature of the CDC business allows money launderers the opportunity to move drug
dollars that are in Mexico into CDCs and ultimately into the U. S. banking system. Once the
drug dollars were placed into CDCs, they were readily wire transferred into bank accounts
of CDCs at Wachovia.

14,  Wachovia maintained correspondent bank accounts for a number of Mexican CDCs. The
Wachovia business unit that managed and oversaw the CDC business was located in Miami,
Florida. Miami has been designated as both a High Intensity Money Laundering and Related
Financial Crime Area and a High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area. In 2005, Mexico also was
designated as a high-risk source of money laundering activity, particularly the financial
activities through CDCs. The CDCs involved in the movement of drug monies in this
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investigation were all based in Mexico.

15.  As early as 1996, the DEA, federal regulators and other prominent anti-money laundering
organizations began publicly highlighting the increased money laundering risk presented by
Mexican CDCs to the U.S. financial system. The DEA warned that Mexican drug trafficking
organizations were increasingly using CDCs to place drug proceeds into the U.S. financial
system by smuggling the drug proceeds out of the United States to Mexico and selling those
dollars to Mexican CDCs for pesos. The placement of drug proceeds with Mexican CDCs
is beneficial to both sides of the transaction: the drug trafficking organization is able to
obtain local currency (pesos) to continue its illicit activities without having to risk structuring
drug proceeds into the banking system, and the CDCs, which have a significant need for U.S.
dollars in the ordinary course of their currency exchange activities, obtain a valuable source
of discounted U.S. dollars.

16. In addition to the above warnings, in April of 2006, FinCEN warned the U. S. banking and
financial industry of potential misuse of correspondent banking relationships with Mexican
CDCs. FinCEN specifically warned that the repatriation of bulk cash, multiple wire transfers
initiated by CDCs remitting funds to jurisdictions outside of Mexico that bear no apparent
business relationship with the CDC, and the deposit of third-party items, including
sequentially numbered monetary instruments, were all activities that could be associated with
money laundering.

17.  Asearlyas 2004, Wachovia understood the risk that was associated with doing business with
the Mexican CDCs. Wachovia was aware of the general industry warnings. As early as July
2005, Wachovia was aware that other large U. S. banks were exiting the CDC business based
on AML concerns.

18.  Despite these warnings, Wachovia remained in the business. And in September 2005,
Wachovia purchased the right to solicit the international correspondent banking customers
of Union Bank of California (“UBOC”). Wachovia knew that UBOC was exiting the CDC
market due to AML problems. Wachovia hired at least one person from UBOC who had a
significant role in the CDC business at UBOC. After UBOC exited the CDC business,
Wachovia’s business volume increased notably.

The Nature of Wachovia’s CDC Business

19.  From September 2005 to December 2007, Wachovia provided correspondent banking
services to 22 CDCs, including Casa de Cambio Puebla.

20. Wachovia offered the CDCs at least three services. First, Wachovia allowed CDCs to
conduct wires through Wachovia. These wires were sent by the CDC on behalf of its third-
party customers, who were in Mexico, to recipients throughout the world.
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21. Second, Wachovia offered a “bulk cash” service to CDCs. Using this service, CDCs
collected large amounts of U. S. dollars in Mexico. Those dollars, or “bulk cash,” would
then be physically transported to the United States from the CDC either through an armored
car service or through a means designated by the CDC. Once in the United States, the money
would ultimately be deposited at the Federal Reserve. Through this method, CDCs could
repatriate U.S. dollars into the U.S. market.

22.  Third, Wachovia offered a pouch deposit service to the CDCs. The CDCs would accept
deposit items drawn on U.S. banks, e.g., checks and traveler’s checks presented by their
customers. Those items would then be aggregated and placed into a “pouch” that would be
forwarded to Wachovia in the United States for deposit. In or around May 2005, Wachovia
introduced a new delivery method for international check deposits called “remote deposit
capture” (“RDC”). RDC allowed the CDCs to scan the individual deposititemsintoa digital
format. The scanned files then would be forwarded electronically to Wachovia for credit.

23, The CDCs that banked at Wachovia conducted significant wire, bulk cash, and “pouch” or
' RDC activity through Wachovia. For the time period of May 1, 2004 through May 31,2007,
Wachovia processed at least $373,630,892,102 in wire activity on behalf of the CDCs.
During that same time period, Wachovia processed at least $4,728,626,300 in bulk cash for
the CDCs. For the same time period, Wachovia processed approximately $47,000,000,000
in RDC deposits for all of its correspondent banking customers, which included the Mexican
CDCs.

Suspicious Activity and Drug Money Laundering Through the CDC Accounts

24.  During the investigation, law enforcement reviewed the CDC banking activity that occurred
at Wachovia and found readily identifiable evidence and red flags of large-scale drug money
laundering. A small representation of that conduct includes:

1. Structured Wire Transactions: It was commonplace in the CDC accounts for
multiple round-number wires to be made on the same day or in close succession, by
the same wire senders, for the benefit of the same account.

For example, over a two-day period, ten wire transfers by four different individuals
and one business went through Wachovia for deposit into an aircraft broker’s escrow
account. All of the transfers were in round numbers. None of the individuals or
business that wired the money had any connection to the aircraft or to the entity that
allegedly owned the aircraft. The investigation has further revealed that the identities
of the individuals who sent the money were false and that the business was a shell
entity. That plane was subsequently seized with approximately 2000 kilograms of
cocaine aboard.

On another occasion, a CDC sent eight wires through Wachovia for deposit into an
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aircraft broker’s account on the same day. Four of those wires were allegedly sent
by one individual; two wires were for $49,000 and two wires were for $51,000. The
remaining four wires were allegedly sent by another individual; each of the four wires
was for $50,000. The next day, another CDC sent ten wires through Wachovia to the
same plane broker’s account. Each wire was for $50,000. All of this money was
intended for the purchase of an aircraft, but the money was seized by law
enforcement before the deal was completed. The investigation has further revealed
that the identities of the individuals who sent the money were false.

On another occasion, over a seven-day period, a CDC sent more than $1.3 million in
wire transfers through Wachovia for deposit into a plane broker’s accounts. There
were a total of fifteen wires, and they ranged in amount from $63,000 to $127,500
dollars. All of this money was intended for the purchase of an aircraft, but the money
was seized by law enforcement before the deal was completed.

2. Sequentially Numbered Traveler’s Checks That Contained Unusual Markings: The
CDCs regularly deposited traveler’s checks through pouch deposits that contained
numerous examples of structuring, sequential serial numbers and
endorsement/deposit dates on or near the date of purchase. Other suspicious
elements included “smurf marks,” or unusual markings, and traveler’s checks that
lacked any legible signature.

3. Significant Bulk Cash Transactions In Great Excess of A Customer’s Self-Identified
Expectations: Many of the CDCs that used Wachovia’s bulk cash service sent

significantly more cash to Wachovia than what Wachovia had expected. More
specifically, many of the CDCs exceeded their expected monthly activity by at least
50 percent.

The BSA Investigation

25.  Recognizing these red flags, in May 2007, the United States Attorney’s Office for the
Southern District of Florida, the IRS, and the DEA began investigating Wachovia’s BSA
compliance program. FinCEN subsequently joined the investigation. The OCC conducted
a parallel examination.

26.  These BSA investigations have determined that from May 2003 through at least July 2007,
Wachovia violated the anti-money laundering (“AML”) and suspicious activity reporting
requirements of the BSA and its implementing regulations. The violations at Wachovia were
serious and systemic and allowed certain Wachovia customers to launder millions of dollars
of proceeds from the sale of illegal narcotics through Wachovia accounts over an extended
time period.

27.  The investigation has identified at least $110 million in drug proceeds that were funneled
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through the CDC accounts held at Wachovia. Wachovia failed to appreciate and address the
risks associated with its Mexican CDC customer base and failed to recognize that its
BSA/AML program was inadequate for the task of monitoring for suspicious transactions
from the CDCs.

28.  The investigation has determined that there were essentially seven significant failures in
Wachovia’s AML and Compliance programs:

A. Lack of policies, procedures, or monitoring controls governing the repatriation of
nearly $14 billion of United States dollars in bulk cash for high-risk CDCs and other
foreign correspondent bulk cash customers;

B. Failure to conduct monitoring of over $40 billion in monetary instruments flowing
through international foreign correspondent accounts in the form of RDC for a two-
year period;

C. Failure to conduct adequate levels of due diligence of high-risk CDC customers;

D. Failure to adequately monitor CDCs and other high-risk foreign correspondent
banking accounts in order to fulfill suspicious activity reporting obligations;

E. Failure to implement monitoring controls or limits for sequentially numbered
traveler’s checks for high-risk CDC customers in contravention of Wachovia’s
policy;

F. Failure to detect and report suspicious activity in a timely manner on the $373 billion

in wire transfers that were processed by Wachovia for the CDCs; and
G. Failure to implement effective BSA/AML audit coverage.

Due Diligence and Monitoring of CDC and Correspondent Account Activity

29.  Federal banking regulators have advised banks, including Wachovia, that an effective AML
program should be risk-based and incorporate the following principles into their business

practices:
A. Determine the true identity of all customers requesting services;
B. Determine the particular customer's source(s) of funds for transactions;
C. Determine the particular customer's normal and expected transactions;
D. Monitor customer transactions to determine if they are consistent with the
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normal and expected transactions for that customer or for similar categories
or classes of customers;

E. Identify customer transactions that do not appear to be consistent with normal
and expected transactions for that particular customer or for customers in
similar categories or classes; and

F. Determine if transactions are unusual or suspicious and, if so, report those
transactions.

The business practices listed above are commonly referred to in the industry and by law
enforcement as the “Know Your Customer” (“KYC”) requirements.

30.  Although the bank collected information relating to the identities of its CDC customers, the
expected source of funds, and the normal or expected transactions, this information was not
disseminated to the AML employees and was not readily available when AML was
conducting investigations of transactions. Nor was there any critical analysis of actual
account activity against the expected activity.

31.  The bulk of the correspondent and CDC banking activity involved wire activity. This wire
activity was principally monitored through the use of a computer system. The computer
system would generate monthly alerts based on parameters established by Wachovia. Those
alerts were then to be investigated for potential suspicious activity by the AML personnel in
the Philadelphia, Pennsylvania office of Wachovia. Wachovia’s wire monitoring, however,
was not commensurate with the risk posed by the CDCs. The level of scrutiny imposed on
the wire transactions was significantly limited by personnel and budgetary concerns. The
actual number of alerts that the system was designed to generate per month was pre-set,
based, in part, on the number of investigators available to review the alerts. In addition,
AML personnel were not allowed to carry investigations into the next month. As a result,
any investigation that was begun in one month had to be completed within the same month.
The net result was that the understaffed AML unit in Philadelphia could not keep up with the
volume of wires. The suspicious activity went effectively unmonitored. The $373 billion
in CDC wire transfers were monitored in this inadequate manner.

Bulk Cash

32.  With regard to the bulk cash business, Wachovia had no written formal AML policy or
procedure for the monitoring of bulk cash to ensure that suspicious activity was reported.
AML and compliance personnel did not examine or review the denominations or the regional
source of the bulk cash to compare it against known trends and customer expectations.
Wachovia also did not compare the monthly total amount of repatriated bulk currency money
against customer expectations. Thus, although Wachovia recorded expected activity in bulk
cash for each of its customers, no AML or compliance personnel ensured that the actual
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customer activity matched the customer expectations. Asa result, at least $4,728,626,300
in bulk cash from the CDCs went through Wachovia during the period of May 1, 2004
through May 31, 2007, with essentially no AML monitoring.

Remote Deposit Capture and Pouch Activity

33.  Wachovia never reviewed any of the RDC deposits made from the time the product was first
offered in the summer of 2005 until approximately November 2007. During this time,
approximately $47 billion was deposited into Wachovia through RDC without AML
monitoring. These deposits included traveler’s checks, third party checks, money orders, and
other negotiable instruments. Thus, none of these instruments were subject to examination
for “smurfing,” structuring, or other common money laundering techniques associated with
these types of instruments.

34. With regard to standard pouch activity, Wachovia also failed to enforce a self-imposed policy
regarding traveler’s checks. In 2005, Wachovia was warned that the CDCs were sending in
large quantities of sequentially numbered traveler’s checks for deposit and that this was
potentially suspicious activity. As a result of this warning and other internal discussions,
Wachovia sent a letter to its customers noting that, “due to the strict U.S. regulatory
mandates associated with anti-money laundering policies, Wachovia has decided to limit
acceptance of bulk deposits of traveler’s checks through our cash letter service.” The letter
stated that Wachovia “will require that you no longer remit deposits containing sequentially
numbered USD traveler’s checks where the total value of the series exceeds $10,500.”
Wachovia, however, failed to establish any internal policy or monitoring procedures to
implement or enforce this rule. As a result, from April 2005 through May 2007, Wachovia
accepted more than 1000 pouch deposits that contained thousands of sequentially numbered
traveler’s checks in violation of its own policy.

In addition, Wachovia’s methodology of review of the pouch activity did not occur in “real
time” or near “real time.” Oftentimes, because of budgetary and/or staffing concerns, the
deposit items would be examined three to six months after the deposit had occurred. As a
result, any resulting suspicious activity report would relate to dated transactions.

35.  As a result of these failures, and as a result of Wachovia’s internal audits not identifying
these failures, a voluntary transaction review undertaken by Wachovia indicates that from
April 1, 2005 through May 31, 2007, 13 of the Mexican CDCs processed more than
$20,000,000 in sequentially numbered traveler’s checks through Wachovia in violation of
Wachovia’s own policy. The majority of those traveler’s checks contained no legible names.
Approximately 64% of those traveler’s checks contained unusual markings, that is, markings
that were either handwritten or stamped and included numbers, letters, or a combination of
both. Such markings, lack of signatures, and the sequential numbering of checks are readily
identifiable patterns of money laundering activity.



Case 1:10-cr-20165-JAL Document 13 Entered on FLSD Docket 03/17/2010 Page 23 of 25

Wachovia’s Considerable Cooperation and Remedial Actions

36.  Since the beginning of the BSA investigation, Wachovia has fully cooperated and has
provided valuable assistance to law enforcement. Wachovia retained an outside law firm to
assist in investigating the facts relevant to the United States' investigation. With the
assistance of outside counsel, Wachovia has made numerous detailed periodic reports to the
United States concerning those facts.

37. Wachovia has devoted substantial resources to that investigation and to responding to the
United States' requests for information. To date, Wachovia has produced more than 8
million pages of documents. Wachovia has organized its document productions as requested
by the United States and has provided summaries, indices, and explanations of relevant
documents to assist the United States in its understanding of the facts relevant to its
investigation. Wachovia has also made employees available to be interviewed by the United
States as requested.

38.  Wachovia has also taken extensive remedial measures to address any shortcomings in its
BSA/AML programs.

a. In June 2007, Wachovia hired a new Chief Compliance Officer. In April 2008,
Wachovia also hired a new BSA/AML Officer.

b. Under the leadership of the new Chief Compliance Officer and the new BSA/AML
Officer, Wachovia undertook a substantial remediation of its AML and compliance
functions.

c. Wachovia enhanced its manual transactional party monitoring, with focuses on
high-risk countries and financial institution risk.

d. Wachovia developed and provided enhanced AML training for employees, including
AML Investigative Services staff. Topics of training have included regulatory
responsibility, red flag detection, the black market peso exchange, large cash
transactions, wires to high-risk countries, and activity inconsistent with an account's
stated purpose.

39.  Wachovia voluntarily conducted a detailed “lookback” of Wachovia's transactions with
thirteen Mexican CDCs during a three-year period. Wachovia has provided the results of
the lookback, which was conducted by an independent consultant, to the United States and
its banking regulators. As aresult of the “lookback” program, Wachovia has filed SARs for
conduct related to the CDCs.

A. Wachovia filed more than 4200 SARs relating to wire transactions conducted by the
CDCs, which included $4.3 billion in total dollars;

10
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B. Wachovia filed 8 SARs relating to bulk cash transactions conducted by the CDCs,
which included $4,011,256,648 in total dollars;

C. Wachovia filed 18 SARs relating to sequentially numbered traveler’s check
transactions conducted by the CDCs, which included $23,155,000 in total dollars.

40.  Since Wachovia's acquisition by Wells Fargo, Wachovia has been subject to Wells Fargo's
BSA/AML Compliance Program and compliance and operational risk management,
oversight, and independent testing. Wells Fargo's policies and procedures, including those
relating to escalation and exiting of customer relationships, now apply to Wachovia. As the
integration progresses, Wells Fargo's transaction monitoring system, a more advanced
version of the system used by Wachovia, will be used to monitor Wachovia's transactions.

The Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Section Investigation

41.  From 2003 to 2008, Wachovia Bank maintained account relationships with certain third-
party payment processors.

Telemarketing Practices and Third-Party Payment Processors

42.  Telemarketers engaged in deceptive sales calls during which they obtained individuals’ bank
account information and subsequently transmitted that information to third-party payment
processors. Wachovia Bank processed remotely-created checks (“RCCs”) as part of its
relationship with certain payment processors. Unlike a personal check, where the payor signs
his or her name for authorization, RCCs include text such as “authorized by your depositor.”
The RCCs were deposited into the payment processors' accounts at Wachovia and then
drawn on the personal accounts of individual customers of the merchant-clients. The
processors then sent the deposited funds to the telemarketers via domestic and international
wire transfers.

43.  The individual customers or their financial institutions returned many of these RCCs to the
payment processors' accounts at Wachovia, complaining that a high number of the RCCs
were not authorized by the customers on whose accounts they were drawn. In many
instances, the volume of returns was high -- in some cases exceeding 40% of the deposited
RCCs — and the reason listed for some of the returned RCCs was “unauthorized.” Despite
the fact that Wachovia received information from both internal and external sources about
the volume of returns and the reasons for the returns, the payment processors' accounts were
left open. Wachovia profited from fees it charged the payment processors to process
returned RCCs. During the relevant time period, PPC, Suntasia and YMA/Netchex
deposited approximately $418 million into Wachovia accounts.

Due Diligence and Monitoring of Payment Processor Accounts

44.  Wachovia failed to develop and maintain an effective risk-based BSA/AML compliance
program in light of the inherent risks associated with third-party payment processors and

11
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their high-risk services. The third-party payment processors were high-risk because they
conducted off-shore wire transfers to/from high-risk countries. Third-party payment
processors also presented an elevated risk because their accounts experienced high return
rates. Despite these risk indicators, Wachovia failed to develop a program to analyze the
third-party payment processor accounts commensurate with the risks they presented.

45.  Inparticular, the Bank failed to (1) request detailed information about payment processors’
merchant base and major customers; (2) have a detailed understanding of the processors’
charge-back history; and (3) sufficiently scrutinize the processors’ due diligence programs.
Moreover, where Wachovia did identify telemarketers referenced in a state cease and desist
order, Wachovia notified the processor but did not confirm the assurances it received from
the processor that it no longer processed for the telemarketers. Also, Wachovia did not
determine overall return rates for RCCs and the rates for specific return reasons. Had
Wachovia properly monitored return rates and the reasons for returns, the monitoring would
have resulted in multiple red flags. In addition, Wachovia failed to develop a process or
procedure to monitor the processors’ wire activity. While Wachovia filed SARs on the
payment processors' account activity, those SARs did not cover all suspicious wire activity
in those accounts, some of which involved entities located in hi gh-risk countries. Moreover,
with respect to one of the payment processors, Wachovia failed to close the processor's
accounts after identifying three instances of suspicious activity.

46.  Wachovia assigned due diligence and KYC responsibilities to its relationship managers.
Delegating these responsibilities to relationship managers allowed the business unit to decide
whether to call for additional due diligence. The payment processors’ accounts should have
been classified as high-risk and subjected to additional due dili gence. Although Wachovia’s
enhanced due diligence unit reviewed one of the payment processor’s accounts, Wachovia’s
overall KYC process failed to include critical elements such as an examination of sources
of wealth, an examination of international transactions, or an examination of changes in
account activity.

Termination of Accounts

47.  After additional information was received and the Government's action in United States v.
PPC, No. 06-725 (E.D. Pa. filed Feb. 17, 2006), which froze certain payment processors’
accounts at Wachovia based on allegations that PPC's merchant-clients were defrauding their
customers, Wachovia examined its relationships with payment processors. Wachovia was
subsequently the subject of investigations by the Department of Justice and OCC and of civil
class action suits regarding these relationships. In response, Wachovia began terminating its
relationships with third-party payment processors. Wachovia subsequently instituted
remedial measures to enhance its fraud-detection and compliance capabilities with respect
to telemarketers, payment processors, and other customers that create RCCs. Wachovia has
also funded a restitution program to reimburse individuals whose RCCs were deposited by
the payment processors.

12
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 10-CR-20165-LENARD

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Vs.
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A,,

Defendant.
/

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

Pursuant to Rule 48(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and by leave of Court
endorsed herein, the United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida hereby dismisses the
Criminal Information filed in the above-captioned case against the defendant, WACHOVIA BANK,
N.A. As grounds therefore, the government states as follows:

1. On March 12, 2010, the United States filed a Criminal Information charging
Wachovia Bank, N.A., with willfully failing to establish an anti-money laundering program, in
violation of Title 31, United States Code, Sections 5318(h)(1) and 5322(a).

2. OnMarch 16, 2010, the United States and Wachovia Bank, N.A. entered into a twelve
month deferred prosecution agreement (“DPA”), which was filed with this Court (D.E. # 13). The
DPA required, among other things, that Wachovia Bank, N.A. (a) acknowledge responsibility for
its conduct as detailed in the Factual Statement; (b) continue its cooperation with the United States;
and (c) demonstrate its future good conduct and compliance in all material aspects with the Bank
Secrecy Act and all of its implementing regulations, including, but not limited to, the remedial

actions specified in the DPA.
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3. Pursuant to the DPA, the United States agreed that if Wachovia Bank, N.A. fully
complied with all of its obligations under the DPA, it would dismiss the Criminal Information
against Wachovia Bank, N.A.

4, Given that Wachovia Bank, N.A. has fully complied with its obligations under the
DPA and has not otherwise breached the DPA, and pursuant to the terms of the DPA, the United
States believes that dismissal is appropriate under the circumstances.

WHEREFORE, pursuant to Rule 48(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and by
leave of Court endorsed hereon, the United States hereby dismisses the Criminal Information filed

in the instant case.

Respectfully Submitted,

\M/\,L

WIFREDO A. FERRER
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Leave of Court is granted for the filing of the foregoing Dismissal.

DATE: 47 / 4’/ 1) g K “/M

U]éN A.LENARD /——
ITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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1-11-12 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROVIDED TO OCC for FOIA#2012-00208-F
Dear Ms. Burton:

1- In the first instance | am requesting documents specified by you as “copies of
approval/decision letters or agency orders” dating back to 2006. These
documents should be readily accessible to you as computer files, and
retrievable in a short time. On the basis of what you sent me | will try to buy
certificates through the website you provided.

2- In the second instance | am looking for documentation from the OCC
responsive to the following questions, and the issues presented herein below:

A- Do you confirm the details posted at the following Federal Reserve Links?

http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionHistory.aspx?parlD RSSD=1157433
&parDT END=99991231

http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionHistory.aspx?parlD RSSD=484422
&parDT END=20100319

2007-10- WORLD SAVINGS BANK, F.S.B. sold assets to WACHOVIA BANK,
12 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION.

WORLD SAVINGS BANK, F.S.B. was renamed to WACHOVIA
MORTGAGE, F.S.B. and moved to 6825 ALIANTE PARKWAY NORTH LAS
VEGAS, NV.

2007-10- WACHOVIA MORTGAGE, F.S.B. sold assets to WACHOVIA BANK,
12 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION.

2007-12-
31

The above table which is extracted from one of the above links shows that on October
12, 2007, World Savings Bank, FSB (WORLD), and Wachovia Mortgage, FSB
(WMFSB) separately, but concertedly, sold all their assets to Wachovia Bank NA
(WBNA), thus both becoming empty shell companies with no assets at all, but
probably with substantial liabilities. However, on December 31, 2007, the first of the
above worthless companies supposedly changed its name to the latter worthless
company, but for what reason other than for the predetermined colossal criminal fraud
of laundering around $100 billion drug money in to the purchase of all outstanding
WORLD mortgages (i.e.: Real Estate)? Does the OCC have any explanations for this
fraud other than my uncontested findings that this was a drug money laundering
operation to launder all assets of the two drained entities (WORLD & WMFSB) into



http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionHistory.aspx?parID_RSSD=1157433&parDT_END=99991231
http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionHistory.aspx?parID_RSSD=1157433&parDT_END=99991231
http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionHistory.aspx?parID_RSSD=484422&parDT_END=20100319
http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionHistory.aspx?parID_RSSD=484422&parDT_END=20100319
http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionProfile.aspx?parID_Rssd=484422&parDT_END=20080310
http://www.ffiec.gov/nicpubweb/nicweb/InstitutionProfile.aspx?parID_Rssd=484422&parDT_END=20080310

the drug funded WBNA, as drug cartel assets, while thereafter fraudulently foreclosing
on hundreds of thousands of properties under the false pretexts of WORLD, or
WMFSB, whose loans had already been sold, and transferred, to the drug cartel
(WBNA)?

B- Please confirm that:
Wachovia Mortgage, FSB charter was null and void at inception:
With the reasoning found at page 4 of the document linked below:

- 8-23-11 G043669 APPEAL OPPOSITION Unveils California DOJ & Courts’
Potential Conflicts of Interest in Maximizing Their CALPERS Retirement Funds
by Colossal Plunder of Houses as MBS elments of CALPERS’ Components ++
WACHOVIA Drugs Charter Void

C- Pages 3-4 of the following document, under “ARGUMENT:” please verify that
“WACHOVIA

MORTGAGE, FSB, FKA WORLD SAVINGS BANK,FSB, A FEDERALSAVINGS
BANK"

Is a fictional non-entity and could not have ever appeared in any court of law:

http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/case no 09 60050 rin 7 6 2010.
pdf

Explanation: In my cases, lawyers appearing for Wachovia names have made
contradictory, and fraudulent disclosures as to the legal status of Wachovia and its
related entities, however in the case of :

Derrick DAVIS, Plaintiff, v. WORLD SAVINGS BANK, FSB, et al ---
2010 WL 4236437
United States District Court, District of Columbia.

at paragraphs 10-11 their lawyer state the following:

1113

10. World is a federal savings bank with its principal place of business in San
Antonio, Texas. In October 2006, Congress adopted 12 U.S.C. 8 1464(x), which
makes federal savings banks citizens of the state in which they have their home
offices. Under that statute, World is a citizen of Texas for diversity purposes. Seel2
U.S.C. § 1464(x).



http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/8-23-11-g043669-opposition-to-afrct-dismiss-appeal-motion.pdf
http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/8-23-11-g043669-opposition-to-afrct-dismiss-appeal-motion.pdf
http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/8-23-11-g043669-opposition-to-afrct-dismiss-appeal-motion.pdf
http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/8-23-11-g043669-opposition-to-afrct-dismiss-appeal-motion.pdf
http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/8-23-11-g043669-opposition-to-afrct-dismiss-appeal-motion.pdf
http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/case_no_09_60050_rjn_7_6_2010.pdf
http://kareemsalessi.files.wordpress.com/2010/04/case_no_09_60050_rjn_7_6_2010.pdf
https://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?mt=Westlaw&db=1000546&docname=12USCAS1464&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&findtype=L&ordoc=2023520338&tc=-1&vr=2.0&fn=_top&sv=Split&tf=-1&referencepositiontype=T&pbc=CCA47822&referenceposition=SP%3be293000085dc6&rs=WLW12.01
https://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?mt=Westlaw&db=1000546&docname=12USCAS1464&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&findtype=L&ordoc=2023520338&tc=-1&vr=2.0&fn=_top&sv=Split&tf=-1&referencepositiontype=T&pbc=CCA47822&referenceposition=SP%3be293000085dc6&rs=WLW12.01
https://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?mt=Westlaw&db=1000546&docname=12USCAS1464&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&findtype=L&ordoc=2023520338&tc=-1&vr=2.0&fn=_top&sv=Split&tf=-1&referencepositiontype=T&pbc=CCA47822&referenceposition=SP%3be293000085dc6&rs=WLW12.01

11. Wachovia is an inactive North Carolina corporation without a principal place of
business. Thus, Wachovia is a citizen of North Carolina for diversity purposes. See28

U.S.C. 8§ 1332(c)(1).”

The Davis court did not buy the above corporate disclosure either, and found it
fraudulent, but ignored it because it did not make a difference in the outcome of its

decision!


https://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?mt=Westlaw&db=1000546&docname=28USCAS1332&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&findtype=L&ordoc=2023520338&tc=-1&vr=2.0&fn=_top&sv=Split&tf=-1&referencepositiontype=T&pbc=CCA47822&referenceposition=SP%3b10c0000001331&rs=WLW12.01
https://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?mt=Westlaw&db=1000546&docname=28USCAS1332&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&findtype=L&ordoc=2023520338&tc=-1&vr=2.0&fn=_top&sv=Split&tf=-1&referencepositiontype=T&pbc=CCA47822&referenceposition=SP%3b10c0000001331&rs=WLW12.01
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